
 
 
 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

www.covingtonwa.gov 
Tuesday, November 24, 2015                                                                                             City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                                            16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
Note:  A Special Meeting – Joint Study Session with Planning Commission is scheduled from 6:00 to 7:00 p.m. 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION - NONE 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, not 

the audience or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes per 
speaker.  Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 

C-1. Minutes:  October 31, 2015 Budget Workshop (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson)  

C-3. Approve 2016 Tri-City Interlocal Agreement for Building Administration Services (Hart/Meyers) 
 
REPORTS OF COMMISSIONS 

 Human Services Chair Fran McGregor:  Oct. 8 meeting; Nov. 12 meeting canceled due to SOTC. 

 Parks & Recreation Chair Laura Morrissey:  November 18 meeting. 

 Planning Chair Bill Judd:  November 5 and November 19 meetings. 

 Arts Chair Lesli Cohan:  November 19 special meeting; Nov. 12 meeting canceled due to SOTC. 

 PRePAC Chair Jennifer Harjehausen:  October 28 meeting. 

 Economic Development Council next meeting:  December 3; November 26 canceled (holiday)  
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
1. Receive Public Testimony Regarding Proposed Fiscal Year 2016 Budget and; 

1a. Consider Resolution Making a Declaration of Substantial Need for Purposes of Setting the Limit 
Factor for the Property Tax Levy for 2015 

1b. Consider Ordinance Setting the 2015 Property Tax Levy for Collection in 2016 
1c. Consider Ordinance Authorizing a Property Tax Increase in Terms of Both Dollars and 

Percentages (Parker/Hendrickson) 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
2. Consider Ordinance Relating to Days and Hours of City Offices and Legal Holidays (Scott) 
3. Discuss Policy Considerations Regarding Permanent Marijuana Regulations (Hart) 
4. Budget Discussion (Hendrickson) 

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/


 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT *See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section 

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 To Discuss Potential Litigation Pursuant to RCW 42.30.110(1)(i)  
 

ADJOURN 
 
Americans with Disabilities Act – reasonable accommodations provided upon request a minimum of 24 hours in advance 
(253-480-2400). 
 



Consent Agenda Item C-1 
Covington City Council Meeting 

Date:  November 24, 2015   
 
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  OCTOBER 31, 2015 CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL 

MEETING – BUDGET WORKSHOP MINUTES 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Sharon G. Scott, City Clerk 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  Proposed Minutes 
 
PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION:  
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance   _____ Resolution     X     Motion              Other  
 

Councilmember __________ moves, Councilmember ___________ 
seconds, to approve the October 31, 2015 City Council Special  
Meeting – Budget Workshop Minutes. 

1 of 65



Unapproved Draft – October 31, 2015 Special Meeting-Budget Workshop Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  November 24, 2015 
 

City of Covington 
City Council Special Meeting - Budget Workshop Minutes 

Saturday, October 31, 2015 
 
The Special Meeting for the Budget Workshop was called to order in the City Council Chambers, 
16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington, Washington, Saturday, October 31, 2015, at 8:00 
a.m., with Mayor Harto presiding. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Margaret Harto, Joe Cimaomo, Marlla Mhoon (arrived @ 8:05 a.m.), Jim Scott, Sean Smith, and 
Jeff Wagner. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS ABSENT: 
Mark Lanza. 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
Regan Bolli, City Manager; Don Vondran, Public Works Director; Noreen Beaufrere, Personnel Manager; 
Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director; Andrew McCurdy, Covington Police Chief; Richard Hart, 
Community Development Director; Karla Slate, Communications & Marketing Manager; Pat Patterson, 
Interim Parks & Recreation Director; Angie Feser, Parks Planner; Rachel Bahl, Aquatics Supervisor; Bob 
Lindskov, City Engineer; Casey Parker, Senior Accountant, and Sharon Scott, City Clerk/Executive 
Assistant. 
 
Mayor Margaret Harto called the Budget Workshop to order. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Council Action:  Mayor Pro Tem Wagner moved and Councilmember Smith seconded to 
approve the Agenda.  Vote:  5-0.  Motion carried. 
 
ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION: 
1. Revenue Options. 
 
City Manager Regan Bolli introduced this item, and Finance Director Rob Hendrickson gave the 
staff report. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, and Mr. Bolli, Mr. Hendrickson, and 
Community Development Director Richard Hart provided responses. 
 
2.  Department 2015 Budget Presentations. 
 

a. Executive.  City Manager Regan Bolli gave the presentation on this item. 
 

Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions.  Mr. Bolli, City Clerk/Executive 
Assistant Sharon Scott, Parks Planner Angie Feser, Finance Director Rob Hendrickson, and 
Community Development Director Richard Hart provided responses. 
 

2 of 65



Unapproved Draft – October 31, 2015 Special Meeting-Budget Workshop Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  November 24, 2015 
 

b. Finance.  Finance Director Rob Hendrickson gave the presentation on this item. 
 

Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, and Mr. Hendrickson and 
Communications & Marketing Manager Karla Slate provided responses. 

 
c. Community Development.  Community Development Director Richard Hart gave the 

presentation on this item. 
 

Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, and Mr. Hart and Senior Accountant 
Casey Parker provided responses. 

 
d. Public Works.  Public Works Director Don Vondran gave the presentation on this item. 
 

Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, and Mr. Vondran, Mr. Bolli, and Mr. 
Hart provided responses. 

 
Council recessed at 9:55 a.m. for a break and reconvened at 10:06 a.m. 

 
e. Parks & Recreation.  Interim Parks & Recreation Director Pat Patterson gave the 

presentation on this item. 
 

Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions.  Mr. Patterson, Aquatics Supervisor 
Rachel Bahl, Communications & Marketing Manager Karla Slate, Parks Planner Angie Feser, and 
Personnel Manager Noreen Beaufrere provided responses. 

 
f. Police.  Police Chief Andrew McCurdy gave the presentation on this item. 
 

Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, and Chief McCurdy provided 
responses. 
 
Council recessed for a few minutes to gather box lunches and continued a working lunch. 
 
Council continued providing further comments and asking further questions regarding the police 
budget presentation.  Chief McCurdy provided responses.  

 
3.  Review Budget Strategies. 

a. Parks Merger with General Fund. 
 

City Manager Regan Bolli gave the presentation on this item. 
 
The following budget strategies were presented: 

 Strive to make all funds self-sufficient:  merge the Parks Fund with the General Fund; adopt 
a new revenue source for the Street Fund; 

 Build a strong and sustainable General Fund:  eliminate the General Fund subsidy to the 
Street Fund; 

 Use fund balance only in cases where funds have a deficit to cover; 

3 of 65



Unapproved Draft – October 31, 2015 Special Meeting-Budget Workshop Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  November 24, 2015 
 

 Maintain a 20% General Fund fund balance and a 15% fund balance in all other funds; 
 Meet the City’s ongoing demands by aligning appropriate levels of service within City 

resources:  funding a police officer per council policy; fund other staff deficiencies to 
support existing and ongoing service levels; 

 Allocate $190,000 insurance proceeds to the Parks CIP projects. 
 
Mr. Bolli, as requested by Council, itemized the Council consensus decisions he had listed in his 
notes:  charge a higher business license fee to professionals that do not pay sales tax; put EDC 
membership dues with other membership dues; research credit card fees amount and determine if 
a convenience fee can be charged; decision cards for a police officer and maintenance worker; 
update fall prevention amounts, include parks and recreation canopies, and add SET task force.  
 
Councilmembers discussed and asked questions.  Mr. Bolli and Mr. Hendrickson provided 
responses. 
 
There was Council consensus to direct staff to prepare reports for the November 10, 2015 Council 
meeting to discuss setting the utility tax rate for stormwater, solid waste, and cable television; and 
discuss vehicle license fee implementation. 

 
4.  Discuss Budget Presentations. 
 
Finance Director Rob Hendrickson gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Councilmembers asked questions and discussed the budget presentations and decision cards.  Mr. 
Hendrickson, Mr. Bolli, and Mr. Vondran provided responses.  
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 1:35 p.m. 
 
Prepared by:      Submitted by:  
 
__________________________________         
Joan Michaud      Sharon Scott 
Senior Deputy City Clerk    City Clerk 
 
 
 

4 of 65



Consent Agenda Item C-2 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  November 24, 2015 
 
SUBJECT:  APPROVAL OF VOUCHERS  
 
RECOMMENDED BY: Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  Electronic fund transfer in the amount of $293.43, dated November 2, 
2015; Vouchers #33298-33341, including ACH payments, in the amount of $362,240.74, dated 
November 13, 2015; and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1004493971-1004493985 inclusive, plus 
employee direct deposits in the amount of $170,496.23, dated November 20, 2015. 
 
PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION: Not applicable. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: Not applicable. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Not applicable. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance _____ Resolution     X      Motion            Other  

 
Councilmember ___________ moves, Councilmember _________________ 
seconds, to approve for payment Electronic fund transfer in the amount of 
$293.43, dated November 2, 2015; Vouchers #33298-33341, including ACH 
payments, in the amount of $362,240.74, dated November 13, 2015; and 
Paylocity Payroll Checks #1004493971-1004493985 inclusive, plus employee 
direct deposits in the amount of $170,496.23, dated November 20, 2015. 
  
 
 
 
 

 

5 of 65



6 of 65



7 of 65



8 of 65



9 of 65



10 of 65



11 of 65



12 of 65



13 of 65



14 of 65



15 of 65



16 of 65



17 of 65



18 of 65



Consent Agenda Item C-3  
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: November 24, 2015  
 
SUBJECT:  CONSIDER ENTERING INTO AN INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

THE CITIES OF COVINGTON, MAPLE VALLEY AND BLACK DIAMOND 
RELATING TO BUILDING CODE ADMINISTRATION, BUILDING PLAN 
REVIEW, AND BUILDING INSPECTION SERVICES.  

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Richard Hart, Community Development Director 
                                          
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Proposed Interlocal Agreement for Building Code Administration, Building Plan Review, 
and Building Inspection Services. 

 
PREPARED BY:  Richard Hart, Community Development Director 
 
EXPLANATION: 
The cities of Covington, Maple Valley and Black Diamond wish to enter into an Interlocal 
Agreement (ILA) with each other for a variety of Building Safety Services, including building 
code administration, building plan review and building inspection.  This ILA allows each city to 
pick the type of service they desire from another city.  No city will directly provide or use code 
enforcement as part of this ILA.  The ILA includes provisions for the following services: 

1. Building Code Administration, 
2. Building Plan Review, and  
3. Building Inspections. 

 
ALTERNATIVES: 
Decline the proposed Interlocal Agreement with the other cities at this time. 
Refer Interlocal Agreement to staff for revision of specified terms.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
A slight positive revenue generation will accrue to Covington as the dollar amounts generated 
from providing Building Code Administration and Plan Review Services to Maple Valley and 
Black Diamond should be higher than the costs of Building Inspection Services provided by 
Maple Valley to Covington under this Interlocal Agreement. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance         Resolution     X   Motion         Other 
 

Council member ____________ moves, Council member _________________ 
seconds, to authorize the City Manager to enter into an Interlocal Agreement 
(ILA) between the Cities of Covington, Maple Valley and Black Diamond 
relating to building safety services and sign such ILA in a form substantially 
similar to that provided. 
 

REVIEWED BY:  City Manager; City Attorney; & Finance Director. 

19 of 65



 

Interlocal Agreement – Building Services 
Page 1 of 10 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN 

THE CITIES OF COVINGTON, MAPLE VALLEY, AND BLACK DIAMOND 
FOR 

BUILDING SERVICES 
 

 
 

RECITALS 
 

THIS INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is entered into between the City of 
Covington, a Washington municipal corporation (“Covington”), the City of Maple Valley, a 
Washington municipal corporation (“Maple Valley”), and the City of Black Diamond, a 
Washington municipal corporation (“Black Diamond”), (collectively the “Parties” or “Cities” or in 
the singular “Party” or “City”). 
 
 WHEREAS, the Parties are “public agencies” as defined by Chapter 39.34 of the Revised 
Code of Washington (RCW) and through the provisions of that chapter are authorized by state 
law to enter into interlocal agreements on the basis of mutual advantage and thereby to provide 
services and facilities in the manner and pursuant to forms of governmental organization that 
will accord best with geographic, economic, population, and other factors influencing the needs 
of local communities; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Parties have similar building code administration, plans examination, and 
building inspection needs and each Party can realize certain economies from sharing resources, 
thereby providing savings to taxpayers through contracting for shared services; and 
 
 WHEREAS, each Party has agreed to compensate a Party for services offered under this 
Agreement; 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein, it is agreed 
between the Parties as follows: 
 
 

AGREEMENT 
 
1. Purpose.  It is the purpose of this Agreement to utilize the provisions of state law to 
enable the Parties to take advantage of economies of scale in sharing resources and by offering 
building code administration, plans examination, and building inspection services to the other 
Parties.  
 
2. Services. Covington and Maple Valley (collectively the “Providing Parties” or individually 
a “Providing Party”) agree to offer the following services (“Offered Service(s)”) to the Parties 
upon request (collectively the “Requesting Parties” or individually a “Requesting Party”) 
pursuant to the following. 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 1

20 of 65



 

Interlocal Agreement – Building Services 
Page 2 of 10 

2.1.  Offered Services.  
 

2.1.1. Building Code Administration. Covington agrees to offer building code 
administration services, performed by Covington’s Building Official, to 
Requesting Parties.  Building code administration services includes building code 
enforcement actions respective to the Requesting Party’s building code, as 
amended, and associated enforcement processes.  

 
2.1.2. Plans Examination. Covington agrees to offer plans examination 
services, performed by Covington’s Plans Examiner, to Requesting Parties. 

 
2.1.3. Building Inspection. Maple Valley agrees to offer building inspection 
services, performed by Maple Valley’s Building Inspectors, to Requesting 
Parties.  

 
2.1.4. Warranty. The Providing Parties represent and warrant that each of 
their respective building officials, plans examiners, and building inspectors have 
the requisite licensing, certification, training, skill, and experience necessary to 
provide the services offered under this Agreement. The Providing Parties’ 
building officials, plans examiners, and building inspectors, respectively, will 
perform the services under this Agreement in a manner consistent with that 
degree of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the same profession 
currently practicing in similar circumstances.  

 
2.2. Requests for Offered Services. A Requesting Party shall submit a written 
request to the relevant Providing Party for performance of an Offered Service, including 
any and all needs, specifications, or standards that must be considered. Such written 
request must be made by the Requesting Party’s Community Development Director or 
authorized designee. For the purposes of this sub-section, the Parties agree that a 
written request may be submitted by a Requesting Party to a Providing Party via email.  

 
2.3. Acceptance of Request for Offered Services. The Providing Party shall promptly 
respond to a written request for an Offered Service with a written acceptance or denial 
within seventy-two (72) hours of receipt of a written request (“Response Period”). 
Weekends and legal holidays of the Providing Party shall not be calculated as part of the 
Response Period (i.e. a written request for services received by a Providing Party at 2pm 
on a Thursday shall be responded to by the Providing Party no later than 2pm on the 
following Tuesday). The Providing Party may deny a request for an Offered Service at its 
sole discretion and without reason. Such written acceptance or denial of a request for 
an Offered Service must be issued by the Providing Party’s Community Development 
Director or authorized designee. For the purposes of this sub-section, the Parties agree 
that a written acceptance or denial may be issued by a Providing Party to a Requesting 
Party via email. 

 
2.4. Providing Party Administrative Oversight. The Providing Party shall have 
administrative oversight of the Offered Service requested and shall be responsible for 
invoicing the Requesting Party for the Offered Service rendered pursuant to Section 4 
herein.  

21 of 65



 

Interlocal Agreement – Building Services 
Page 3 of 10 

 
3. Term of Agreement. This Agreement shall become effective as of the date this 
Agreement is approved by the legislative body of Covington and at least one additional Party  
and subsequently executed by those Parties according to each of those Parties’ adopted policies 
and procedures. The remaining Party may enter into this Agreement at any time upon approval 
of their legislative body and subsequently executed according to that Party’s policies and 
procedures. Unless terminated by all Parties pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, this 
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect until December 31, 2017.  
 
This Agreement may be extended by written agreement of the Parties subject to the approval of 
such extension by each Party’s legislative body.  

 
4. Payment.  Requesting Parties shall pay for Offered Services provided by Providing 
Parties pursuant to the following.  
 

4.1. Payments for Offered Services. A Requesting Party shall pay for actual direct 
and related indirect costs, including any overhead and administrative charges, for 
Offered Services provided by the relevant Providing Party pursuant to the fees listed for 
each Providing Party in Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this 
reference (the “Service Fees).  

 
4.1.1. Annual Adjustment of Service Fees.  Providing Parties may annually 
adjust their respective Service Fees, beginning January 2017. Adjustments to 
Service Fees must be based on the local CPI-U January-to-January rate and/or 
changes in the local market that can be quantified.  Adjustments may also be 
based on an annual cost study conducted by the respective Providing Party 
reflecting the increased cost to the Providing Party for the services provided to 
Requesting Parties under this Agreement. In no event may a Providing Party 
increase their Service Fees more than four percent (4%) each calendar year. The 
respective city manager, city administrator, or mayor of a Providing Party shall 
provide the other Parties with sixty (60) days advance written notice of the 
effective date of, and basis for, Service Fees adjusted pursuant to this 
subsection. 

 
4.2. Billing. Each Providing Party shall submit a monthly invoice to each Requesting 
Party, which shall contain the amount of Offered Services provided during the preceding 
month. Payment shall be made by the Requesting Party within thirty (30) days of receipt 
of said invoice from a Providing Party.  

 
4.3. Billing Disputes.  In the event there is a dispute regarding an invoiced amount 
by a Providing Party, the Parties in dispute shall make every effort to resolve such 
dispute by mutual agreement. In the event there is no mutually agreed resolution to the 
dispute, the relevant Parties shall forward the dispute to each Party’s City Manager/City 
Administrator/Mayor for resolution. In the event there is no resolution after review by 
the Parties’ City Manager/City Administrator/Mayor, the Parties shall seek mediation 
through a mutually agreed mediation service and each Party shall bear its own costs for 
mediation. If mediation is unsuccessful, any Party may pursue any legal remedy 
available from a court of competent jurisdiction. Any dispute that has gone to mediation 

22 of 65



 

Interlocal Agreement – Building Services 
Page 4 of 10 

and mediation was unsuccessful in resolving the dispute shall be grounds for any Party 
to terminate this Agreement for material breach. 
 

5. Termination. 
 
5.1. Termination by Notice.  Any Party may terminate its participation in this 
Agreement by providing the other Parties with sixty (60) days advance written notice of 
the effective date of such termination. The Party providing such notice shall remain 
responsible for any costs incurred under this Agreement.  

 
5.2. Termination by Mutual Written Agreement.  This Agreement may be 
terminated in its entirety at any time by a written agreement executed by all of the 
Parties. 

 
5.3. Termination for Breach.  Any Party may terminate its participation in this 
Agreement for material breach of the terms of this Agreement upon fourteen (14) days 
advance written notice to the other Parties, provided that disputes regarding billing 
statements shall be handled pursuant to Subsection 4.3 and shall not be deemed a 
breach of this Agreement except as set forth in Subsection 4.3. 

 
6. Indemnification and Hold Harmless.  

6.1. Each Providing Party shall defend, indemnify and hold the City of Black 
Diamond, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers harmless from any and all 
claims, injuries, damages, losses or suits including attorney fees, arising out of or 
resulting from the acts, errors or omissions of the Providing Party in performance of this 
Agreement, except for injuries and damages caused by the sole negligence of Black 
Diamond.  

 
6.2. Each Providing Party shall hold harmless and indemnify each other Providing 
Party hereto, its elected officials, officers, employees, and agents (collectively the 
“Indemnitees”) from and against any and all suits, actions, claims, liability, damages, 
judgments, costs, and expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) that result from 
or arise out of the acts or omissions of the respective Providing Party, its elected 
officials, officers, employees, and agents in connection with or incidental to the 
performance or non-performance of Offered Services, duties, and obligations under this 
Agreement. 

 
6.3. Should a court of competent jurisdiction determine that this Agreement is 
subject to RCW 4.24.115, then, in the event of liability for damages arising out of bodily 
injury to persons or property caused by or resulting from the concurrent negligence of a 
Providing Party and the City of Black Diamond, its officers, officials, employees, and 
volunteers, the Providing Party liability, including the duty and cost to defend, 
hereunder shall be only to the extent of the Providing Party negligence. It is further 
specifically and expressly understood that the indemnification provided herein 
constitutes the Providing Party’s waiver of immunity under the Industrial Insurance, 
Title 51 RCW, solely for the purposes of this indemnification. This waiver has been 
mutually negotiated by the parties.  

 

23 of 65



 

Interlocal Agreement – Building Services 
Page 5 of 10 

6.4. In the event the acts or omissions of the officials, officers, agents, and/or 
employees of a Party in connection with or incidental to the performance or non-
performance of Offered Services, duties, or obligations under this Agreement are the 
subject of any liability claims by a third party, each Party shall each be liable for its 
proportionate concurrent negligence in any resulting suits, actions, claims, liability, 
damages, judgments, costs, and expenses and for their own attorneys’ fees. 
 
6.5. Nothing contained in this section or this Agreement shall be construed to create 
a right in any third party to indemnification. 

 
6.6. The provisions of this section shall survive any termination or expiration of this 
Agreement. 

 
7. Insurance.  A Providing Party shall procure and maintain for the duration of this 
Agreement, insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damage to property which may 
arise from or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder by the Providing Party, 
its agents, representatives, or employees. 

 
7.1. No Limitation. Providing Party maintenance of insurance as required by this 
Agreement shall not be construed to limit the liability of the Providing Party to the 
coverage provided by such insurance, or otherwise limit a Requesting Party’s recourse 
to any remedy available at law or in equity. 

 
7.2. Minimum Scope of Insurance. Each Providing Party shall obtain insurance of the 
types described below: 

7.2.1. Automobile Liability insurance covering all owned, non-owned, hired 
and leased vehicles. If necessary, the policy shall be endorsed to provide 
contractual liability coverage. 

7.2.2. General Liability insurance shall be written on an occurrence form and 
shall cover liability arising from premises, completed operations, 
independent contractors and personal injury and advertising injury. 

7.2.3. Workers’ Compensation coverage as required by the Industrial 
Insurance laws of the State of Washington. 

 
7.3. Minimum Amounts of Insurance. Each Providing Party shall maintain the 
following insurance limits: 

7.3.1. Automobile Liability insurance with a minimum combined single limit 
for bodily injury and property damage of $5,000,000 Combined Single 
Limit per accident. 

7.3.2. Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written with limits no 
less than $5,000,000 each occurrence, $10,000,000 general aggregate. 

 
7.4. Other Insurance Provisions. The insurance policies are to contain, or be 
endorsed to contain, the following provisions for Automobile Liability, and General 
Liability insurance: 

7.4.1. The Providing Party’s insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as 
respect to a Requesting Party. Any insurance, self-insurance, or 
insurance pool coverage maintained by a Requesting Party shall be 

24 of 65



 

Interlocal Agreement – Building Services 
Page 6 of 10 

excess of the Providing Party’s insurance and shall not contribute with 
it. 

7.4.2. The Requesting Party will not waive its right to subrogation against the 
Providing Party. The Providing Party’s insurance shall be endorsed to 
waive the right of subrogation against the Requesting Party, or any self-
insurance, or insurance pool coverage maintained by the Requesting 
Party. 

7.4.3. The Providing Party’s insurance shall not be cancelled by any party, 
except after thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail, return 
receipt requested, has been given to the other Parties to this 
Agreement. 

7.4.4. If any coverage is written on a “claims made” basis, then a minimum of 
a three (3) year extended reporting period shall be included with the 
claims made policy, and proof of this extended reporting period 
provided to the other Parties to this Agreement. 

 
7.5. Acceptability of Insurers. Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current 
A.M. Best rating of not less than A:VII, or as a risk pool, approved by and in good 
standing with the State of Washington Office of Risk Management. 

 
7.6. Verification of Coverage. A Providing Party shall furnish the other Parties to this 
Agreement with proof of coverage evidencing the insurance requirements of the 
Providing Service provider before commencement of the Offered Service. 

  
8. Independent Service Provider. 
 

8.1. The Parties intend that an independent contractor relationship is created by this 
Agreement. In providing Offered Services under this Agreement, each Providing Party is 
an independent contractor and neither it nor its officers, agents, or employees are 
employees of a Requesting Party for any purpose, including responsibility for any federal 
or state tax, industrial insurance, or Social Security liability. Neither shall the provision of 
Offered Services under this Agreement give rise to any claim of career service or civil 
service rights, which may accrue to an employee of the Providing Party under any 
applicable law, rule, or regulation. Nothing in this Agreement is intended to create an 
interest in or give a benefit to third persons not signing as a party to this Agreement. As 
an independent contractor, each Providing Party shall be responsible for the reporting 
and payment of all applicable local, state, and federal taxes. No agent, employee, or 
representative of a Providing Party shall be deemed to be an employee, agent, or 
representative of a Requesting Party for any purpose, and the employees of a Providing 
Party are not entitled to any of the benefits that a Requesting Party provides for its 
employees. 

 
8.2. In the performance of the Offered Services herein each Providing Party is an 
independent contractor with the authority to control and direct the performance of the 
details of the Offered Service; however, the results of the Offered Services herein must 
meet the approval of the Requesting Party and shall be subject to the Requesting Party’s 
general rights of inspection and review to secure the satisfactory completion thereof. 

25 of 65



 

Interlocal Agreement – Building Services 
Page 7 of 10 

Each Providing Party shall be solely and entirely responsible for its acts and for the acts 
of its agents, employees, or representatives performed within the authorized scope of 
its agents, employees, or representatives’ duties during the performance of this 
Agreement. 

 
 

9. Miscellaneous. 
  

9.1. Notices. Notwithstanding Sub-sections 2.2 and 2.3 herein, notices to be 
provided pursuant to this Agreement shall be provided in writing to the person and 
address indicated below. Notices shall be deemed delivered three (3) days after 
placement of the notice in the U.S. Mail, first class postage pre-paid. Courtesy copies of 
notices may be provided via email transmission but shall not constitute delivery of 
written notice as set forth herein. 

 
9.1.1. City of Covington 

Community Development Director 
16720 SE 271st St. Suite 100 
Covington, WA 98042 

 
9.1.2. City of Maple Valley 

Community Development Director 
22017 SE Wax Road, Suite 200  
Maple Valley, WA  98038 

 
9.1.3. City of Black Diamond 

Community Development Director 
24301 Roberts Drive 
PO Box 599 
Black Diamond, WA  98010 

 
9.2. Non-Waiver of Breach. The failure of any Party to insist upon strict performance 
of any of the covenants and agreements contained in this Agreement shall not be 
construed to be a waiver or relinquishment of those covenants, agreements, or options, 
and the same shall be and remain in full force and effect. 

  
9.3. Resolution of Disputes and Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed 
by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Washington. Subject to 
Sub-section 4.3, if the Parties are unable to settle any dispute, difference, or claim 
arising from the Parties’ performance of this Agreement, the exclusive means of 
resolving that dispute, difference, or claim shall only be by filing suit exclusively under 
the venue, rules, and jurisdiction of the King County Superior Court, King County, 
Washington, unless the relevant Parties agree in writing to an alternative dispute 
resolution process.   

 
9.4. Assignment. This Agreement is not assignable by any Party, in whole or in part. 

 

26 of 65



 

Interlocal Agreement – Building Services 
Page 8 of 10 

9.5. Modification. Except as provided for in Subsection 4.1.1, no waiver, alteration, 
or modification of any of the provisions of this Agreement shall be binding unless made 
in writing and approved by the legislative body of each city. 

 
9.6. Compliance with Laws.  Each Party agrees to comply with all local, federal, and 
state laws, rules, and regulations that are now effective or in the future become 
applicable to this Agreement. 

 
9.6.1. Nondiscrimination in Employment. In the performance of this 
Agreement, no Party will discriminate against any employee on the grounds of 
race, religion, creed, color, national origin, sex, marital status, disability, sexual 
orientation, age, or other basis prohibited by state or federal law unless based 
upon a bona fide occupational qualification. Each Party shall take such action 
with respect to this Agreement as may be required to ensure full compliance 
with local, state, and federal laws prohibiting discrimination in employment. 

 
9.6.2. Nondiscrimination in Services. No Party will discriminate against any 
recipient of any Services provided for in this Agreement on the grounds of race, 
religion, creed, color, national origin, sex, marital status, disability, sexual 
orientation, age, or other basis prohibited by state or federal law. 
 

9.7. Entire Agreement. The written terms and provisions of this Agreement, 
together with any exhibits attached hereto, shall supersede all prior communications, 
negotiations, representations or agreements, either verbal or written, of any officer, 
employee, or other representative of each party and such statements shall not be 
effective or be construed as entering into or forming a part of or altering in any manner 
this Agreement. All of the exhibits are hereby made part of this Agreement.  Should any 
of the language of any exhibits to this Agreement conflict with any language contained 
in this Agreement, the language of this document shall prevail. 

 
9.8. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement, in whole or in part, is 
adjudicated to be invalid, such action shall not affect the validity of any provision not so 
adjudicated. 

 
9.9. Interpretation. The legal presumption that an ambiguous term of this 
Agreement should be interpreted against the Party who prepared the Agreement shall 
not apply. 

 
9.10. No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is between the Parties and is not 
meant to benefit any third party.  

 
9.11. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, any of 
which shall constitute an agreement by and among the Parties who have executed this 
Agreement, provided that each Party shall transmit to the attention of the Covington 
City Clerk an original, executed signature page of this Agreement. The Covington City 
Clerk shall cause a copy of this Agreement and a copy of each executed signature page 
of each party to be posted on the Covington City website pursuant to RCW 39.34.040.  

 

27 of 65



 

Interlocal Agreement – Building Services 
Page 9 of 10 

          IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties below execute this Agreement, which 
shall become effective pursuant to the terms of Section 3, herein. 

 

CITY OF COVINGTON: 
 
By:      
 (signature) 
Print Name: Regan Bolli _______ 
Its       City Manager _______ 
  
DATE:    _______ 
 

CITY OF MAPLE VALLEY: 
 
By:      
                       (signature) 
Print Name:  David W. Johnston_______ 
Its   City Manager   
 
DATE:      
 

ATTESTED BY: 
 
__________________________________ 
Sharon Scott, City Clerk 
 

ATTESTED BY: 
 
__________________________________ 
City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM ONLY: 
 
    ________ 
Sara Springer, City Attorney 

APPROVED AS TO FORM ONLY: 
 
     _ 
Patricia Taraday, City Attorney 

 
 

CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND: 
 
By:      
 (signature) 
Print Name: _Carol Benson_______  
Its                      Mayor   
  
DATE:      
 

ATTESTED BY: 
 
_________________________________ 
City Clerk 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM ONLY: 
 
      
City Attorney 
 

 
 
 

 
 

28 of 65



 

Interlocal Agreement – Building Services 
Page 10 of 10 

EXHIBIT A 
PROVIDING PARTIES’ SERVICE FEES—2016 - 2017 

 
1. Covington Service Fees 

 
(a) Building Administration Services of Building Official, including Project Review or 

Inspection--Hourly fee of $89.00. 
(b) Building Plan Review Services of Plans Examiner--Hourly fee of $75.00 
(c) Travel time will be billed at the same hourly fee for each service provider as 

indicated above.  
 

2. Maple Valley Service Fees 
 

(a) Building Inspection Services of Building Inspectors-Hourly fee of $75.00, which 
includes vehicle and travel costs. 

 
3. Services Fees may be reviewed annually by each Providing Party pursuant to 

Subsection 4.1.1. 
 
 
 

29 of 65



 Agenda Item 1 
  Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: November 24, 2015 
 

SUBJECT: PUBLIC HEARING TO RECEIVE TESTIMONY FROM THE PUBLIC 
REGARDING PROPOSED FISCAL YEAR 2016 BUDGET [SECOND OF TWO 
PUBLIC HEARINGS]. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S):  

 
 

COUNCILMEMBERS AND STAFF: PLEASE REMEMBER TO BRING YOUR 
PRELIMINARY 2016 BUDGET WORKBOOK BINDERS TO THE MEETING. 

THANK YOU! 
 

RECOMMENDED BY:  Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
 
EXPLANATION:   
This is the second and final public hearing to receive testimony from the public on the 2016 
proposed operating and capital budget and proposed increases in property tax revenues.  This 
hearing is required to be held on or before the first Monday in December (December 7th) and 
may be continued from day-to-day, but no later than the 25th day prior to the next fiscal year.  
 
It is the policy of the city to follow applicable laws as they relate to the budget process. 
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
N/A 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:  _____Ordinance  _____Resolution  _____Motion     X     Other 
 

 
REVIEWED BY:  City Manager; City Attorney; Finance Director 
 

30 of 65



 Agenda Item 1a 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: November 24, 2015 
 
SUBJECT: CONSIDER PROPOSED RESOLUTION MAKING A DECLARATION OF 

SUBSTANTIAL NEED FOR THE PURPOSE OF SETTING THE LIMIT FACTOR 
FOR THE PROPERTY TAX LEVY FOR THE 2016 TAX ROLL 

 
ATTACHMENT(S):  

1. Proposed Resolution 
 
EXPLANATION:  
With the city experiencing record sales tax growth, other revenues such as utility tax and REET 
continue to decline or are unstable in the mixed economy. Costs continue to increase far beyond 
the one percent (1%) limit factor in police services, audit services, animal control services, labor 
and medical costs, park and general maintenance services, supplies and other applicable general 
fund services. Revenues cannot keep pace.   
 
Under chapter 84.55 RCW, the growth of regular property tax levies is limited. The limit factor 
for local taxing districts with a population of 10,000 or more is the lesser of 101% or 100% plus 
inflation. RCW 84.55.005 defines “inflation” as the percentage change in the implicit price deflator 
(IPD) for personal consumption. The IPD for this year is 0.251% resulting in a limit factor of 
100.251 %.  
 
To increase the limit factor to a maximum of 101%, a declaration of substantial need must be 
adopted. The attached proposed resolution makes such a declaration and must be approved by a 
majority plus one (i.e. five) council members. The limit factor authorized by the resolution is for 
one year only. 
 
The difference between the 101% limit factor and IPD is small. However, every little bit helps as 
costs continue to escalate and major revenues such as utility tax continue to struggle.  
 
Staff recommends council consider adopting the resolution declaring a substantial need.  
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
Do not adopt this resolution and adjust the limit factor for the property tax levy by 0.251% to 
100.251%.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
The proposed resolution allows the City Council to limit the increase in property taxes to a 
maximum of one percent (1%). If the City Council adopts the proposed resolution and passes the 
subsequent ordinances related to property taxes, the 1% increase totals $24,743. Not adopting the 
resolution and accepting the lower limit factor would result in a reduction of $18,532 in the 
property tax levy.   
 
 
 

31 of 65



CITY COUNCIL ACTION:  ____Ordinance      X   Resolution  ____Motion  ____Other 
 

Councilmember __________ moves and Councilmember ___________ 
seconds, to adopt a Resolution, in substantial form as that attached hereto, 
making a declaration of substantial need for the purpose of setting the limit 
factor for the property tax levy at 101% for 2016. 
 

REVIEWED BY:  City Manager; City Attorney; Finance Director 
 

32 of 65



RESOLUTION NO. 15-13 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, 
MAKING A DECLARATION OF SUBSTANTIAL NEED 
FOR THE PURPOSE OF SETTING THE LIMIT FACTOR 
FOR THE PROPERTY TAX LEVY FOR 2015. 

 
WHEREAS, RCW 84.55.010 provides that a taxing jurisdiction may levy taxes in an 

amount no more than the limit factor multiplied by the highest levy of the most recent three years 

plus additional amounts resulting from new construction and improvements to property, newly 

constructed wind turbines, and any increase in the value of state‐assessed utility property; and 

WHEREAS, under RCW 84.55.005(2)(c), the limit factor for a taxing jurisdiction with a 

population of 10,000 or more is the lesser of 101 percent or 100 percent plus inflation; and 

WHEREAS, RCW 84.55.005(1) defines “inflation” as the percentage change in the 

implicit price deflator for personal consumption expenditures for the United States as published 

for the most recent 12‐month period by the Bureau of Economic Analysis of the federal 

Department of Commerce in June of the year before the taxes are payable; and 

WHEREAS, “inflation” for June 2015 is 0.251 percent and the limit factor is 100.251 

percent, meaning the taxes levied in the City of Covington in 2015 for collection in 2016 will 

decrease except for the amounts resulting from new construction and improvements to property, 

newly constructed wind turbines, any increase in the value of state‐assessed utility property, any 

annexations that have occurred, and any prior year refunds; and 

WHEREAS, RCW 84.55.0101 provides for use of a limit factor of 101 percent or less with 

a declaration of substantial need by a majority plus one Councilmembers; and 

ATTACHMENT 1

33 of 65



WHEREAS, The City of Covington has experienced declining and unstable revenues for 

utility taxes, real estate excise taxes, as well as other sources of revenue as a result of mixed 

economic conditions; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Covington has incurred increasing costs far in excess of the one 

percent limit factor in police services, audit services, animal control services, labor and benefits, 

park and general maintenance services, supplies and other applicable general fund services; and  

WHEREAS, the City of Covington’s General Fund would benefit from a declaration of 

substantial need; and   

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Covington finds there is a substantial need to 

set the levy limit at hundred one percent (101%); 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON 

HEREBY RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. A declaration is made of substantial need under RCW 84.55.0101, which authorizes 

the use of a limit factor of one hundred one percent (101%) for the property tax levy for 2015. 

ADOPTED in open and regular session on this 24th day of November, 2015. 

 

   
 Mayor Margaret Harto 

 
Attested: 
 
 
  
Sharon Scott, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
  
Sara Springer, City Attorney 

34 of 65



 
 

  Agenda Item 1b 
  Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: November 24, 2015 
 
 
SUBJECT: PROPOSED ORDINANCE TO SET THE 2015 PROPERTY TAX LEVY FOR 

COLLECTION IN 2016. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  

1. Proposed Ordinance 
2. Property Tax Worksheet 

 
EXPLANATION:  
Property taxes for the City of Covington are currently one of three main sources of revenue for the 
city. Property taxes are subject to a variety of legal limitations, including limits on growth (the 
101%), limits on tax rates, and limits on total rate for overlapping districts. Property taxes are the 
most stable form of taxation – one that is not portable.  
 
Staff has proposed an estimated property tax increase of 4.1%.  The increase will allow for any 
adjustments in revenue resulting from new construction, improvements to property, newly 
constructed wind turbines, any increase in the value of state assessed property, any annexations 
that have occurred, and refunds made that are added to the worksheet by the county after adoption 
of the property tax levy ordinance.   
 
A public hearing required under state law (RCW 84.55.120) to consider the city’s revenue sources 
and potential adjustments to property tax revenues was held on October 27, 2015 and November 
24, 2015. The deadline for setting 2015 property tax levies for cities in King County is November 
30, 2015. 
 
It is the policy of the city to follow applicable laws as they relate to the budget process. 
 
ALTERNATIVES:  
This is a significant revenue source for the city. Should the council elect to make any significant 
changes to the levy that has been projected in the preliminary budget and the 6-Year Forecast 
Model, a corresponding change in the budgeted expenditures may need to be made. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
This ordinance sets the 2015 property tax levy for taxes to be collected in 2016. Covington’s 
estimated assessed value (AV) for 2016 is $1,975,050,567 including (estimated) $18,803,217 for 
new construction.  
 
Based on the AV, the estimated total levy is $2,523,761. This includes the beginning levy of 
$2,474,337, plus one percent of the beginning levy equaling $24,743, and an estimated amount for 
new construction of $24,681. A final amount to be levied for new construction, the state-assessed 
public utility value, and prior year refunds made will be determined by the assessor’s office.  
 

35 of 65



 
 

The estimated dollar increase over the actual 2015 levy amount, excluding new construction, 
annexations, increase in utility value, and prior year refunds, is $100,982, or 4.1%.   
 

2016 expense request amount  $  2,600,000  
Subtract last year's actual levy    (2,474,337) 

  $     125,663  
Subtract new construction         (24,681) 
Subtract annexation                     -  
Subtract refunds                     -  
Increase Amount  $     100,982  

  
Divide increased amount over last year's actual levy: 
$100,982/$2,474,337 = 4.1%  

 
Because the county does not have the final numbers for items such as new construction, the state-
assessed public utility value, and refunds made at this time, language is included in the ordinance 
that gives the county permission to make changes based on the final numbers. This would result 
in additional taxes for the city.  Therefore, the amount that will be included in the ordinance to 
cover any additional revenue not included in the preliminary worksheet will be $2,600,000.  
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:        X      Ordinance  _____Resolution  _____Motion          Other 
 

Councilmember ___________________ moves, Councilmember 
_____________________ seconds, to pass an ordinance, in 
substantial form as that attached hereto, setting the 2015 
property tax levy for collection in 2016 at $2,600,000. 

 
REVIEWED BY:  City Manager; City Attorney; Finance Director. 

 

36 of 65



 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 14-15 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, 
PASSING THE REGULAR PROPERTY TAX LEVY FOR 
2015 FOR COLLECTION IN 2016. 
 

WHEREAS, the city council of the City of Covington has met and considered its budget 
for the calendar year 2016; and 

 
WHEREAS, the city council held a public hearing on November 24, 2015, and heard and 

duly considered relevant evidence and testimony regarding an increase in property tax revenues 
from January 1, 2016, to December 31, 2016; and 

 
WHEREAS, the population of the City of Covington is more than 10,000;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON, KING 

COUNTY, WASHINGTON, DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 

 Section 1. The city council hereby establishes a regular property tax levy for 2015 
for collection in 2016 in the amount of $2,600,000, which is a 4.1% increase in property tax 
revenue from the previous year, in addition to revenue resulting from new construction, 
improvements to property, newly constructed wind turbines, any increase in the value of state-
assessed property, any annexations that have occurred, and refunds made in order to discharge 
the expected expenses and obligations of the city and in its best interest.  
 

Section 2. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect five (5) days after proper  
posting and publication.  A summary of this ordinance may be published in lieu of publishing the 
ordinance in its entirety. 
 

Section 3.  If any provision of this ordinance, or ordinance modified by it, is  
determined to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the remaining provisions of this 
ordinance and ordinances and/or resolutions modified by it shall remain in full force and effect. 
 

PASSED by the City of Covington City Council at a regular meeting thereof held on the 
24th day of November 2015. 

   
 Mayor Margaret Harto 

 
ATTESTED:      PUBLISHED:  December 4, 2015 
  EFFECTIVE:  December 9, 2015 
    
Sharon Scott, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
  
Sara Springer, City Attorney 

ATTACHMENT 1

37 of 65



2014 Levy Amount= 2,474,337$                                   

x1% 24,743                                          

Increase in utility value -                                                

Plus: New Construction 24,681                                          

Relevy for prior year refunds -                                                

2015 Property Tax Levy 2,523,761$                                   
Estimated Levy for County purposes 1 2,600,000$                                   

Assessed Valuation 1,975,050,567$                            

2015 Estimated Levy Rate= 1.27782$                                      

Estimated Property Tax
2016

City of Covington

1
 The estimated levy amount is based on King County's request that the city estimate above the expected levy to allow for 

additional adjustments that may occur after the city adopts the ordinance. Additional revenue may come from new construction, 

improvements to property, newly constructed wind turbines, any increase in the value of state assessed property, any 

annexations that have occurred, and refunds made. If the levy amount is not requested the city could lose out on the additional 

revenue. 

11/19/2015

ATTACHMENT 2

38 of 65



Agenda Item 1c 
  Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: November 24, 2015 
 
SUBJECT: PROPOSED ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING A PROPERTY TAX INCREASE IN 

TERMS OF BOTH DOLLARS AND PERCENTAGES AS REQUIRED BY RCW 
84.55.120. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S):  

1. Proposed Ordinance 
 
EXPLANATION:  
To increase the regular property tax levy to be collected in the 2016 tax year, the city council needs 
to adopt a separate ordinance as required by RCW 84.55.120, which states in part:  

     “No increase in property tax revenue, other than that resulting from the addition of new 
construction, increases in assessed value due to construction of electric generation wind turbine 
facilities classified as personal property, and improvements to property and any increase in the 
value of state-assessed property, may be authorized by a taxing district, other than the state, 
except by adoption of a separate ordinance or resolution, pursuant to notice, specifically 
authorizing the increase in terms of both dollars and percentage. The ordinance or resolution 
may cover a period of up to two years, but the ordinance shall specifically state for each year the 
dollar increase and percentage change in the levy from the previous year.” 

This year the King County Assessor’s Office has asked us to calculate the percent increase 
differently than in previous years.  The calculation is as follows: 
 

2016 expense request amount  $  2,600,000  
Subtract last year's actual levy    (2,474,337) 

  $     125,663  
Subtract new construction         (24,681) 
Subtract annexation                     -  
Subtract refunds                     -  
Increase Amount  $     100,982  

  
Divide increased amount over last year's actual 
levy: 
$100,982/$2,474,337 = 4.1%  

 
The attached ordinance meets the requirements of RCW 84.55.120. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
This ordinance states the property tax increase as 4.1%, or $100,982, pursuant to state statute.  
 
 

39 of 65



 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:       X    Ordinance  _____Resolution  _____Motion          Other 
 

Councilmember _____________ moves, and Councilmember 
______________ seconds, to pass an ordinance, in substantial 
form as that attached hereto, authorizing a property tax 
increase of four and one tenth percent (4.1%), or $100,982, 
pursuant to RCW 84.55.120. 
 

REVIEWED BY:  City Manager; City Attorney; Finance Director. 
 

 
 

40 of 65



ORDINANCE NO. 15-15 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, 
SPECIFICALLY AUTHORIZING A PROPERTY TAX 
INCREASE IN TERMS OF BOTH DOLLARS AND 
PERCENTAGES, TO BE COLLECTED IN THE 2016 TAX 
YEAR, AS PURSUANT TO RCW 84.55.120. 
 

WHEREAS, the city council of the City of Covington has met and considered its budget 
for the calendar year 2016; and 
 

 WHEREAS, the city’s actual levy amount from the previous year was $2,474,337; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the population of the city is more than 10,000;  
  

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON, KING 
COUNTY, WASHINGTON, DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

 
 Section 1. An increase in the regular property tax levy is hereby authorized for the 

levy to be collected in the 2016 tax year. The dollar amount of the increase over the actual levy 
amount from the previous year shall be $100,982, which is a percentage increase of 4.1% from 
the previous year. The increase is in addition to revenue resulting from new construction, 
improvements to property, newly constructed wind turbines, any increase in the value of state 
assessed property, any annexations that have occurred, and refunds made.  
 

 Section 2. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect five (5) days after proper 
posting and publication.  A summary of this ordinance may be published in lieu of publishing the 
ordinance in its entirety. 
 

 Section 3.  If any provision of this ordinance, or ordinance modified by it, is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the remaining provisions of this 
ordinance and ordinances and/or resolutions modified by it shall remain in full force and effect. 
 

 PASSED by the City of Covington City Council at a regular meeting thereof held on the 
24th day of November, 2015. 

 
   
 Mayor Margaret Harto 

ATTESTED: 
 
  PUBLISHED:  December 4, 2015 
Sharon Scott, City Clerk 
  EFFECTIVE:  December 9, 2015 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   
 
  
Sara Springer, City Attorney 

ATTACHMENT 1

41 of 65



  

Agenda Item 2  
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  November 24, 2015   
 
 
SUBJECT:    CONSIDER AN ORDINANCE RELATING TO THE DAYS AND HOURS OF      

CITY OFFICES AND LEGAL HOLIDAYS AND ESTABLISHING A NEW 
CHAPTER 2.80 OF THE COVINGTON MUNICIPAL CODE FOR THE SAME 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Regan Bolli, City Manager 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Proposed Ordinance Relating to the Days and Hours of City Offices and Legal Holidays 
and Establishing a New Chapter 2.80 of the Covington Municipal Code For the Same 

 
PREPARED BY:  Sharon Scott, City Clerk/Executive Assistant 
 
EXPLANATION:  
RCW 35A.21.070 requires that all code city offices shall be kept open for the transaction of 
business during such days and hours as the legislative body of the city shall prescribe by 
ordinance. The attached proposed ordinance (Attachment 1) will bring the city into compliance 
with state law and establish a mechanism for the city council, as well as the city manager, to 
designate temporary closures, reduced city hours or department hours, or varied open hours by 
department, from time to time, as necessary to provide for staff training, use of floating holidays, 
and other events that require the closure of City Hall and/or specific departments.  
 
The proposed ordinance also codifies the legal holidays observed by the city. Notably, Christmas 
Eve and a half day on New Year’s Day are proposed new additions to the list of legal holidays, 
but are only to be observed in the years where they fall on a regular office day not already being 
observed as a legal holiday (e.g. if Christmas Day falls on a Saturday, it would be recognized on 
the Friday before, which would be December 24th—in that instance, Christmas Eve would not be 
recognized as a legal holiday that year because it falls on a regular office day where a different 
legal holiday is already being observed). It has been a long standing informal practice of the city 
to allow for a significantly reduced level of staff coverage on December 24th and December 31st 
when they fall on a regular office day. The proposed ordinance recognizes these days as legal 
holidays in order to codify that practice, providing for a consistent application of the holiday for 
all staff and predictability for staff to better plan their work and vacation schedules.  
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
Not Applicable 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
Not Applicable 
 
 
 

42 of 65



  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION:  ___X__Ordinance  _____ Resolution           Motion               Other  
 

Councilmember ___________ moves, and Councilmember 
_________________ seconds to pass an ordinance in substantial 
form as that attached hereto relating to the days and hours of city 
offices and legal holidays and establishing a new Chapter 2.80 of 
the Covington Municipal Code for the same.  
 

REVIEWED BY:  City Manager, City Attorney, City Clerk, Personnel Manager 

43 of 65



 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 16-15 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON, 
WASHINGTON, RELATING TO THE DAYS AND HOURS 
OF CITY OFFICES AND LEGAL HOLIDAYS; 
ESTABLISHING A NEW CHAPTER 2.80 OF THE 
COVINGTON MUNICIPAL CODE FOR THE SAME; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND ESTABLISHING 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
 

WHEREAS, state law, as codified in 35A.21.070 RCW, requires that all code city offices 
shall be kept open for the transaction of business during such days and hours as the legislative 
body of such city shall by ordinance prescribe; and 

 
WHEREAS, the city council has previously established legal holidays for the city but has 

not established by ordinance the days and hours that city offices shall be kept open for the 
transaction of business; and 

 
WHEREAS, the city council desires to update the legal holidays observed by the city to 

reflect past practices of the city and to ensure uniform application to all city personnel; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city council desires to add a new Chapter 2.80 to the Covington Municipal 

Code (CMC) to include provisions for establishing and codifying such days and hours of business 
and recognized legal holidays of the city; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON, 
WASHINGTON, DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

 
 

Section 1. New Chapter 2.80 CMC Established. A new Chapter 2.80 of the Covington 
Municipal Code is hereby established, to read as follows: 
 
 

Chapter 2.80 
CITY HOURS OF BUSINESS  

 
2.80.010 Hours of business.  
All offices and departments of the City shall be kept open for the 
transaction of business from the hours of 8:00 am to 5:00 pm, Monday 
through Friday, except for legal holidays and such days or hours as may, 
from time to time, be specified by motion or resolution of the City 
Council; and provided that the City Manager may authorize any office or 
department to vary from these hours where it will promote the efficiency 
of the office or department and provide adequate service to the public. 

ATTACHMENT 1

44 of 65



 
 

 
2.80.020 Legal holidays.  
The following days shall be recognized as legal holidays: 
 

  New Year’s Day       January 1 
  Martin Luther King Jr. Day      Third Monday of January 
  Presidents’ Day       Third Monday of February 
  Memorial Day        Last Monday of May 
  Independence Day       July 4 
  Labor Day        First Monday of September 
  Veterans’ Day        November 11 
  Thanksgiving Day       Fourth Thursday of November 
  Day after Thanksgiving Day      Fourth Friday of November 
  Christmas Eve *       December 24 
  Christmas Day        December 25 
  Half day New Year’s Eve*      December 31 
  Floating Holiday       Provided by administrative policy 
 

Except for Christmas Eve and New Year’s Eve, whenever any legal holiday 
set forth in this section falls upon a Saturday, the preceding Friday shall be 
a legal holiday; when any legal holiday falls upon a Sunday, the following 
Monday shall be a legal holiday. *Christmas Eve and a half day on New 
Year’s Eve shall only be observed as legal holidays as set forth in this 
section when they fall on a regular work day in which no other legal holiday 
is observed.  

  
Section 2.  Ordinance Controls. All ordinances, resolution, and sections of the Covington 
Municipal Code in conflict with this ordinance are, to the extent of the conflict, superseded and 
have no further force or effect.  

 
Section 3.  Severability. Should any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this 
ordinance, or its application to any person or circumstance, be held invalid or unconstitutional by 
a court of competent jurisdiction, or should any portion of this ordinance be pre-empted by state 
or federal law or regulation, such decision or preemption shall not affect the validity of the 
remaining portions of this ordinance or its application to other persons or circumstances. 

 
Section 4.  Corrections. Upon the approval of the city attorney, the city clerk is authorized to 
make any necessary non-substantive, technical corrections to this ordinance including, but not 
limited to, the correction of scrivener’s/clerical errors, references, ordinance numbering, 
section/subsection numbers, and any reference thereto.  

 
Section 5.  Summary Publication. Publication of this ordinance in the official newspaper of 
the city shall be by summary publication consisting of the ordinance title.  
 

 

45 of 65



 
 

Section 6.  Effective Date. This ordinance shall be published in the official newspaper of the 
city and shall take full force and effect on the date listed below. 

 
PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON, 

WASHINGTON, AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREOF ON THE 24th DAY OF 
NOVEMBER, 2015, AND SIGNED IN AUTHENTICATION OF ITS PASSAGE THIS 24TH 
DAY OF NOVEMBER. 2015.  

 

      CITY OF COVINGTON 
 
 
      
Margaret Harto, Mayor 
 

 
PUBLISHED:  December 4, 2015 
 
EFFECTIVE:   December 9, 2015 

 
ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED:  
      

 
                                         
Sharon Scott, City Clerk  
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM ONLY: 
 
__________________________ 
Sara Springer, City Attorney 
 

46 of 65



 
 

Agenda Item 3 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: November 24, 2015 

 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSS POLICY CONSIDERATIONS FOR PERMANENT REGULATIONS 

REGARDING MARIJUANA USES   
 
RECOMMENDED BY: Richard Hart, Community Development Director 
 Sara Springer, City Attorney 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Interim Zoning Map with 1000 ft. Sensitive Area Buffers 
2. Zoning Map with Proposed 500ft Sensitive Area Buffers (Except for Schools) 
3. Interim Zoning for Marijuana-Related Uses, Adopted November 12, 2013, and Amended 

April 22, 2014 
 

PREPARED BY:  Sara Springer, City Attorney 
                              Richard Hart, Community Development Director 
 
EXPLANATION: 
 
The purpose of this agenda item is for staff to present the council with policy questions of 
primary significance to direct staff when drafting proposed permanent local regulations for 
marijuana uses within our city. Included below is an overview of key pieces of legislation passed 
by the state legislature in their 2015 session, followed by general policies and regulation 
considerations for the council to consider and provide direction to staff to guide drafting of 
permanent local marijuana regulations.  
 
I. OVERVIEW OF NEW STATE LAWS RELATING TO MARIJUANA USES 

 
During this past 2015 state legislative session, two significant pieces of legislation were passed 
to further refine and mature the state’s laws and regulations regarding the uses of medical and 
recreational marijuana. In April, Governor Jay Inslee approved, with several section vetoes, 
Second Substitute Senate Bill 5052 (2SSB 5052), which significantly restructures the state’s 
entire medical marijuana regulatory system. This legislation-named the “Cannabis Patient 
Protection Act”-was the legislation local jurisdictions across the state had been anticipating and 
effectively incorporates all medical marijuana uses under the recreational marijuana regulatory 
structure, creating one regulatory system for the production, processing, and retail of marijuana. 
Primarily, this legislation was anticipated to meet the concerns of the federal government as 
expressed in the “Cole memo”, which called for a robust regulatory system for all marijuana 
uses. Accordingly, this legislation creates an integrated marijuana industry in the state with 
uniform regulations and accountability.  

 
Subsequently, in June, Governor Inslee signed 2ESHB 2136 (hereinafter HB 2136), another 
significant piece of legislation amending the state’s marijuana regulatory system.  Two 
provisions to note in HB 2136 include changes to the taxation of licensed marijuana businesses 

47 of 65



 
 

and changes to the authority of cities and counties to adjust some of the required sensitive use 
buffer zones originally established by I-502.  

 
The following sections provide additional information regarding the new legal and regulatory 
framework for medical and recreational marijuana under the Cannabis Patient Protection Act and 
HB 2136.  Generally, it is important to note that nothing in the new state statutes has changed 
regarding the authority of local governments to adopt and enforce zoning provisions relating to 
marijuana uses. 
 
A. Changes to Medical Marijuana. 
 

a. License for Medical Marijuana Uses Now Required.  Most significantly, the entire 
medical marijuana system will now be under the jurisdiction of the state Liquor Control Board-
now the Liquor and Cannabis Board (LCB)-and state licenses will be required for anyone 
making retail sales of medical marijuana or growing or processing medical marijuana for retail 
sale. Businesses now operating as medical marijuana collective gardens and dispensaries will 
have to make the shift to operating as licensed marijuana businesses, with all of the record-
keeping now applicable to recreational marijuana producers, processors, and retailers. If a 
recreational marijuana store chooses to obtain an LCB endorsement as a retailer of medical 
marijuana, the retail staff will need to be trained on various aspects of medical marijuana. 

 
b. Qualifying Patients and Washington State Department of Health (DOH) 

Regulations. The new legislation charges DOH with much broader regulatory authority over 
medical marijuana. DOH will define “medical marijuana,” as opposed to recreational marijuana. 
DOH will also be creating rules to establish a medical marijuana authorization database to 
create recognition cards for patients and their designated providers. These cards will allow 
patients and their designated providers to possess larger amounts of marijuana products, to 
purchase those products without having to pay state sales tax, and will provide patients and 
caregivers with arrest protection. DOH will also be establishing standards for the new medical 
“marijuana consultant certificate,” which will allow consultants to work for retail outlets in 
helping patients select products for their medical needs. 

 
The legislature included significant protections for medical marijuana patients who voluntarily 
sign up for the state medical marijuana registry after meeting the stricter requirements for being 
certified as a medical marijuana patient. Furthermore, information from the state registry 
database regarding who is on the database will be exempt under the Public Records Act, except 
as necessary for retail sales and criminal justice purposes.  

 
c. Medical Marijuana Cooperatives. Significantly, under the new legislation, state 

statutes regarding “collective gardens” are repealed, effective July 1, 2016. The new legislation 
instead provides for LCB-certified “cooperatives” with a maximum of four patients or designated 
providers and a maximum of 60 plants and 72 ounces of useable marijuana, with a 60-day 
waiting period between adding new members. (No more than 15 plants may be grown in a 
housing unit, unless the housing unit is the location of a cooperative.) 
 

48 of 65



 
 

Cooperatives are permitted only if they are at least one mile away from a marijuana retailer and 
must be registered with the LCB. Additionally, similar to the State Supreme Court’s ruling 
regarding collective gardens, local jurisdictions may prohibit cooperatives within their 
jurisdiction.  
 
B. Changes to Capacity, Licensing, and Taxing of Marijuana Uses. 
 

a. Increased Production. Under the new state legislation, the LCB is authorized to 
determine how much additional marijuana plant canopy will need to be developed to provide for 
the growing of medical marijuana. The LCB will allow producers to grow at 100% of their 
growing capacity. Previously, producers were allowed to grow only up to 70% of their capacity 
so as to stay under the state’s plant canopy limits. The plant canopy no longer has a defined 
limitation, though the LCB can put one in place at its will. With the addition of medical 
marijuana, the LCB is preparing for a bigger marketplace and more consumers and production 
must therefore increase to meet the perceived greater demand. Case in point: as of October, 
2015, the daily sales in the state have grown to two million dollars per day-almost quadrupling 
since the beginning of the year.  

 
b. Expansion of Retail Licenses. The LCB must reopen the license period for retail 

stores and allow for additional licenses to be issued to address the needs of the medical market. 
The LCB will be determining how many additional retail stores will be needed to provide access 
to medical marijuana by qualifying patients or their caregivers. Pursuant to notification sent to 
local jurisdictions at the end of September, 2015, the LCB will not be capping the number of 
retail licenses it will grant per jurisdiction-the former 334 retail storefront cap is no longer 
applicable, and there will be no retail lottery to determine who gets to go into retail in any given 
jurisdiction. Retailers will still be limited to owning only three licenses, but they can now own 
more than 33.3% of the retail licenses in a given jurisdiction. 
 
Existing recreational marijuana retailers may now also apply to the LCB for “medical marijuana 
endorsements” that will allow them to sell or gift medical marijuana to qualifying patients and 
caregivers. Stores with medical marijuana endorsements will be required to have a certified 
medical marijuana consultant on staff. 
 

c. Revised Retail Application Process. According to the LCB, applications for retail 
licenses will now be reviewed and accepted on a merit-based, priority system on a first come-
first served basis.  

 First priority: The LCB will give first priority to applicants who applied for a 
marijuana retail license prior to July 1, 2014,  operated or were employed by a medical 
marijuana collective garden prior to January 1, 2013, who maintained a state and local 
business license (where and when required), and a history of paying state sales tax.  
 
 Second priority: Applicants who operated (or were employed by) a medical 
marijuana collective garden prior to January 1, 2013, have maintained a state and local 
business license, and have a history of paying state taxes and fees will be second in line 

49 of 65



 
 

for retail licenses. 
 
 Third priority: Applicants who do not meet the requirements for priority one or 
priority two will be the last to receive their retail licenses. 

As is the current practice, the only requirement of local governments in the application process is 
to provide a response to the "local authority notice" as to whether the city objects to either the 
location or the applicant and on what grounds that objection is based. The LCB will continue to 
not consider denial based on a local ordinance, but the LCB has stated that it does want to notify 
applicants if there is a local "hurdle" that must be crossed before they can ultimately operate in 
their chosen location. 
 
Applicants for marijuana licenses must also post a sign, provided by the LCB, on the outside of 
the premises to be licensed notifying the public that the premises are subject to an application for 
a marijuana license. The sign must be posted within seven days of submitting an application to 
the LCB. 
 

d. Taxing Changes. HB 2136 included the following changes to the taxing structure of 
marijuana uses: 

 Generally, the legislature intends to reform the tax structure for the regulated legal 
marijuana system to create price parity with the large medical and illicit markets, with the 
specific objective of increasing the market share of the legal and highly regulated 
marijuana market. 
 
 Instead of an excise tax of 25% at each of the three different stages (production, 
processing, and retailing), now there is a single excise tax of 37% imposed at the time of 
marijuana retail sale. This excise tax is in addition to state and local sales tax; however, 
the new legislation provides a retail sales and use tax exemption for marijuana purchased 
or obtained for medical use.  
 
 The current state budget provides for $12 million in funding for counties and 
eligible cities, $6 million in each fiscal year of the 2015-17 biennium. The funds 
appropriated in the budget are to be distributed according to a formula set out in Section 
1603, based on retail marijuana sales, in four installments by the last day of each fiscal 
quarter. 
 
 Beginning in fiscal year 2018, if marijuana excise tax collection exceeds 25 
million dollars, 30% of all marijuana excise taxes deposited into the general fund the 
prior fiscal year will be distributed to local governments as follows: 
 

o 30% will go to counties, cities, and towns where retailers are located, 
based on the retail sales from stores within each jurisdiction; 
 

50 of 65



 
 

o 70% will be distributed to counties, cities, and towns on a per capita basis, 
but only to jurisdictions that do not prohibit the siting of state-licensed producers, 
processors, or retailers. 

 
II. PERMANENT MARIJUANA REGULATIONS—DIRECTION FROM COUNCIL 

 
As previously reported to the council, staff is working toward drafting proposed permanent 
regulations for all marijuana uses within the city. To assist staff in developing permanent 
regulations for consideration, staff is seeking direction and/or general consensus from the council 
regarding the following general policy considerations for marijuana uses. 
 
A. Medical Marijuana Cooperatives. The city currently has a moratorium against  
marijuana collective gardens. As of July 1, 2016, collective gardens will no longer be legal and 
will be replaced with medical marijuana cooperatives, as outlined above.  
 

 Policy Direction: Staff seeks direction from the council as to whether the council will 
prefer to prohibit medical marijuana cooperatives, or if the council would consider 
certain zones within the city where cooperatives would be a permitted use. For example, 
you could specifically limit such cooperatives to only the General commercial (GC) zone. 

 
B. Location of Uses. As previously noted, local land use and zoning regulations will apply to 
the siting of marijuana growing, processing, and retail locations. The city’s current interim 
zoning regulations, with approved zoning designations for production, processing, and retail 
marijuana uses, is included at Attachment 3, adopted on November 12, 2013, and amended on 
April 22, 2014. 
 

 Policy Direction: Staff seeks direction from the council as to whether the council will 
prefer to reconsider the zoning designations of certain marijuana-related uses from those 
adopted in the interim regulations in November, 2013.  

 
C. Sensitive Uses Buffer. RCW 69.50.331(8) sets minimum buffer distance requirements for 
separation of certain uses from licensed marijuana producers, processors, or retailers. The city’s 
interim regulations list the sensitive uses with a required 1,000ft buffer. The coverage of the 
1,000ft sensitive uses buffer under the city’s interim regulations is demonstrated by the map 
included at Attachment 1.  
 
The new state legislation now grants cities the authority to reduce the 1000ft sensitive use 
buffers around certain types of facilities within which licensed marijuana producers, processors, 
or retailers could not previously be located. The buffer zones may be reduced to not less than 100 
feet from recreation centers or facilities, child care centers, public parks, public transit centers, or 
game arcades admitting minors. This authority to adjust buffer distances does not apply to 
elementary or secondary schools or to playgrounds. The city may also allow marijuana research 
facilities to be located not less than 100 feet of all of the above mentioned facilities, including 
elementary or secondary schools, and playgrounds.  
 

51 of 65



 
 

A marijuana research facility is a newly authorized entity. Pursuant to the LCB, if an applicant 
submits a location within 1,000 feet of a formerly sensitive site under I-502, they need only 
provide the LCB with the local ordinance allowing for such site placement to get the LCB to 
accept the location. 
 
To note: once a license is issued by the LCB based on application of the requirements of law and 
rule, they will not anticipate seeking cancellation or non-renewal of that license based simply on 
the movement of a "sensitive use" within the 1,000-foot buffer of that licensed location. 
Accordingly, once issued, any intent to cancel or revoke that license will require due process for 
the license holder and likely an administrative hearing. 
 

 Policy Direction: Staff seeks direction from the council as to whether the council would 
prefer to reconsider the extent/distance of the sensitive uses buffer zones. City staff has 
received a request from the owner of Covington Holistic Medicine to reduce the buffer to 
500ft (again, except for schools and playgrounds), to allow for that location to be an 
allowed location for siting a marijuana-based business. Included as Attachment 2 is a 
map displaying the scope of the sensitive use buffers if reduced to 500ft for all uses 
except for schools and playgrounds. 

 
D. Additional Code Considerations. The following are additional administrative provisions 
that staff will be considering when drafting the permanent regulations. No distinct policy issues 
are currently present for these provisions. Therefore, the following is for the council’s general 
information only, unless the council desires to discuss any of these provisions in further detail. 

 
a. Code Enforcement. The city may create and enforce civil penalties, including 

abatement procedures, for the growing or processing of marijuana and for keeping marijuana 
plants beyond or otherwise not in compliance with state or local regulations. Staff will be 
considering the city’s desired enforcement role beyond that of ensuring compliance with zoning 
regulations.  

 
b. Odor. Odor appears to be one of the primary complaints related to marijuana-

related uses. The LCB views this issue similar to other environmental issues around licensed 
locations that are outside their scope under I-502. LCB has looked to other agencies, such as the  
Puget Sound Clean Air Agency, as the relevant authority to seek regulation of such a complaint, 
rather than the LCB. Staff will be considering if there are any local provisions the city may enact 
to help with this issue.  

 
As made evident by the previous overview of the new state regulations for marijuana uses, state 
laws already heavily regulate the form and function of all marijuana-related businesses and uses-
as the robust regulatory framework is a core requirement of the state regulations. Therefore, 
unless and until a compelling amount of additional data or complaints arise regarding such uses, 
and state laws are found to be inadequate to mitigate the complaint or policy consideration, the 
city need not draft its own overly robust set of regulations on marijuana-related businesses and 
uses.  

 
 

52 of 65



 
 

III. NEXT STEPS 

 

Upon receiving the identified policy direction from council at tonight’s council meeting, staff 
will begin drafting the proposed permanent regulations. As a land use regulation, the draft code 
will be subject to the SEPA and 60-day state review, a public review and engagement process, 
and planning commission review before staff brings it back to the council for their final review, 
consideration, and eventual adoption. Staff will make every best effort to produce proposed 
permanent regulations and shepherd them through the public noticing, hearing, and planning 
commission review process as swiftly as possible. However, it is likely that council will need to 
renew the medical marijuana moratorium one final time in February 2016, to accommodate the 
adoption of the permanent regulations shortly thereafter and prior to July 1, 2016. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 

1. Propose additional regulations to consider for inclusion in the permanent regulations 
governing marijuana-related uses. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
            NA 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance         Resolution         Motion    X     Other 

 
DISCUSSION ITEM ONLY—NO ACTION REQUIRED 

 
REVIEWED BY: City Manager; City Attorney; Community Development Director  

53 of 65



I

R-4

TC

R-8

MC

GC

R-6

MHO

US(R-1)

R-18

.

1 inch = 400 feetCity of Covington: Zoning Information

Created By: Shawn Buck 10/11/2013

Community Commercial
General Commercial
High Density Residential 8du/ac
Industrial
Low Density Residential 4du/ac
Med Density Residential 6du/ac
Mineral
Mixed Commercial

Neighborhood Commercial

Urban Seperator
City Limits
Downtown Boundary

Multifamily Residential 18du/ac ~18 Acres
Mixed Housing/Office ~60 Acres

Town Center ~73 Acres

O:\Covington_GIS_Library\PROJECT_FOLDER\Community_Development\One_Time_Use_Projects\2013\I-502_Map\i_502_map.mxd

I-502 Buffer Information
1000' Buffer
Local Schools
Covington Parks
Park and Ride
Library
Child Care Facility
Religious Facilities

ATTACHMENT 1

54 of 65



I

R-8

R-4
TC

MC

GC

R-6

MHO

US(R-1)

R-18

This map is to be used only for illustrative purposes to generally indicate the city's and state's 1,000 foot sensitive use buffer
 boundaries for the siting of recreational marijuana businesses. This map should not be used or relied upon to determine actual sensitive
 use buffer boundaries and the City of Covington does not warrant the accuracy, currency, completeness, or quality of the information
 provided on this map. The city further disclaims all responsibility or liability for any damage, injury, or loss resulting therefrom.

Recreational Marijuana Sensitive Use Buffer Boundary Map

.

1 inch = 700 feetCity of Covington: Zoning Information

Created By: Shawn Buck 8/12/2015

Community Commercial
General Commercial
High Density Residential 8du/ac
Industrial
Low Density Residential 4du/ac
Med Density Residential 6du/ac
Mineral
Mixed Commercial

Neighborhood Commercial

Urban Seperator
City Limits
Downtown Boundary

Multifamily Residential 18du/ac ~18 Acres
Mixed Housing/Office ~60 Acres

Town Center ~73 Acres

O:\Covington_GIS_Library\PROJECT_FOLDER\Community_Development\One_Time_Use_Projects\2013\I-502_Map\i_502_map.mxd

Sensitive Use Information
500' - 1000' Buffer
Local Schools
Covington Parks
Park and Ride
Library
Child Care Facility
Religious Facilities

ATTACHMENT 2

55 of 65



ATTACHMENT 3

56 of 65



57 of 65



58 of 65



59 of 65



 
 

  Agenda Item 4 
  Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: November 24, 2015 
 
 
SUBJECT:  CONTINUED BUDGET DELIBERATIONS 
 
RECOMMENDED BY: Regan Bolli, City Manager 
 
 ATTACHMENT(S):  
 
PREPARED BY: Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
 
EXPLANATION:  
At the October 31, 2015 Budget Workshop, the city council asked for follow up on some questions 
and asked staff to bring forward some additional decision cards for discussion at a future council 
meeting.  
 
The following is a compilation of those questions and funding requests: 
 

• Can we charge a higher business license fee to professionals who don't pay sales tax? 
- Per the city attorney it was determined that since a business license is a fee, 

rather than a tax, the business license fee can only be equal to the cost of the 
regulation of that activity. In the case of our business license fee, it can only be 
used for the purposes of performing the regulatory actions listed in CMC 
5.10.010. If a fee exceeds the proportionate share of the city's costs of providing 
oversight of the regulated activity, it could be challenged and ruled as an 
unlawful hidden tax used to raise general revenue.  
 
So to answer the question, business license fees are not an alternative for raising 
general revenues. 
 

• Include EDC with other memberships. 
- This was an internal change to the budget document and has been made. 

 
• Research on how much our credit card fees are and if we can charge a convenience fee 

for using a credit card. 
Governments are allowed to charge a percentage based service fee.  Other 
businesses are not allowed to charge a percentage based service fee but can 
charge a flat convenience fee (or surcharge for the private sector).  
 
We are allowed to use both types of fees, one for online permitting (flat fee) and 
the other for over the counter transactions (percentage fee).  PermitTrax can only 
handle the flat convenience fee for online transactions.   

60 of 65



 
 

If we use the percentage method we would have to open up a third merchant 
account to collect the service fees—this is required by Visa to be able to comply 
with their rules.  Visa requires that the fees be settled in a separate transaction 
from the charge, so the customer will see two charges on their statement and 
receive two receipts. This is handled automatically through the credit card 
machine. The percentage that is charged is determined by US Bank based on our 
history.  Our current average for the last ten months is 2.77% but bounces around 
monthly between 2.42-3.41%.  The benefit to the percentage method is US bank 
keeps all fees and we aren’t charged any processing fees. 
 

• Add a decision card for police and maintenance worker. 
- These decision cards were part of your budget changes packet last week. 

 
• Email all decision cards to council marked as unfunded or funded. 

- Completed. 
 

• Increase fall prevention costs in Parks. 
- This cost has been updated and is included in the changes worksheet. 

 
• Fund the canopies decision card. 

- These decision cards were part of your budget changes last week. 
- Updated and included in changes worksheet. 

 
• Add SET to budget and bring a decision card. 

- This decision card was part of your budget changes last week. 
 

• Nov 10, 2015 agenda item to discuss extend utility tax and car tabs 
- Completed. 

 
ALTERNATIVES:  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
These items are for discussion only. Any fiscal impact is noted on the changes worksheet and in 
the accompanying decision cards.  
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:              Ordinance _____Resolution _____Motion     X    Other 
 

FOR DISCUSSION ONLY. ASK QUESTIONS OF AND 
PROVIDE DIRECTION TO STAFF 

 
REVIEWED BY:  City Manager; City Attorney; Finance Director. 

 

61 of 65



  
Covington City Council Meeting 
           Date:  November 24, 2015 

 
 

DISCUSSION OF  
FUTURE AGENDA TOPICS: 

 
 

6:00 p.m., Tuesday, December 8, 2015 
 Special Meeting – Study Session 

 
7:00 p.m., Tuesday, December 8, 2015 

 Regular Meeting 
 
 

(Draft Agendas Attached) 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

62 of 65



 
 
 
 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 

CITY COUNCIL STUDY SESSION 
Council Chambers – 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

www.covingtonwa.gov 
 

Tuesday, December 8, 2015 – 6:00 p.m. 
                                                                         
GENERAL INFORMATION: 
The study session is an informal meeting involving discussion between and among the City Council, 
Commissioners, and city staff regarding policy issues.  Study sessions may involve presentations, 
feedback, brainstorming, etc., regarding further work to be done by the staff on key policy matters. 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL STUDY SESSION TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL 
  
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
ITEM(S) FOR DISCUSSION 
1. Sign Code Revisions (Hart) 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, 

not the audience or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes 
per speaker.  Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
ADJOURN 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Americans with Disabilities Act – reasonable accommodations provided upon request a minimum of 24 hours in advance 
(253-480-2400). 

 
*Note* A Regular Council meeting will follow at approximately 7:00 p.m. 

Draft 
as of 11/19/15 

 

63 of 65

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/


 
 
 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

www.covingtonwa.gov 
 
Tuesday, December 8, 2015                                                                                                City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                                            16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
Note:  A Special Meeting - Study Session is scheduled from 6:00 to 7:00 p.m. 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
  
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION 

 Seahorse Birthday Proclamation (_____________) 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, not 

the audience or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes per 
speaker.  Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  November 10, 2015 Regular Meeting; November 24, 2015 Special Joint Study Session 

with Planning Commission; and November 24, 2015 Regular Meeting (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson) 
C-3. Pass Ordinance Adopting a 2015 Budget Amendment (Hendrickson) 
C-4. Approve Indigent Defense Services Agreement (Bolli) 
C-5. Pass Ordinance Related to Fundraising and Donations (Bahl) 
C-6. Approve Abaco Pacific Real Estate Services Agreement (Vondran) 
C-7. Approve 2016 Recycling Events Consultant Agreement (Vondran) 
C-8. Accept Easement Agreement for Clements Drainage Project (Vondran) 
C-9. Extend Tri-City Interlocal Agreement for Public Works Operations (Vondran) 
C-10. Approve Interlocal Agreement with City of Kent for CIP 1127 (Vondran) 
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
1. Receive Public Testimony and Adopt Ordinance Regarding Kent School District’s Six Year Capital 

Facilities Plan (Hart) 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
2. Approve Covington Community Park Phase II Design (Feser & Consultant) 
3. Consider Code Amendments on Sheds & Accessory Structures (Bykonen/Hart) 
4. Consider Ordinance Adopting the CY2016 Operating and Capital Budget (Hendrickson) 

  
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT *See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section 

Draft 
as of 11/19/15 

 

64 of 65

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/


 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 To Discuss Potential Litigation Pursuant to RCW 42.30.110(1)(i)  
 
ADJOURN 
 
Americans with Disabilities Act – reasonable accommodations provided upon request a minimum of 24 hours in advance 
(253-480-2400). 

 
 

65 of 65


	11-24-2015 Regular Meeting Agenda
	Consent C-1 Green Sheet 11-24-2015 Green Sheet Minutes Approval
	Consent C-1 Attachment 1 10.31.2015 Special Mtg-Budget Workshop Minutes
	Consent C-2 Green Sheet 11-24-2015 Voucher Green Sheet
	Consent C-2 Attachment 1
	Consent C-3 Green Sheet Final Blue Sheet_Maple Valley Black Diamond ILA for Building Admin. & Inpsection 11-24-15
	Consent C-3 Attachment 1 Final Attachment 1 ILA_COV_MV_BD_Bldg Services_24Nov2015_v2
	Item 1 Blue Sheet 11-24-15 Blue Sheet for Public Hearing
	Item 1a Blue Sheet 11-24-15 Agenda Item 1a
	Item 1b Blue sheet 11-24-15 Agenda Item 1b
	Item 1b Attachment 1 11-24-15 Attachment 1 for Agenda Item 1b
	Item 1b Attachment 2 11-24-15 Attachment 2 for Agenda Item 1b
	Item 1c Blue Sheet 11-24-2015 Agenda Item 1c
	Item 1c Attachment 1 11-24-2015 Attachment 1 for Agenda Item 1b
	Item 2 Blue Sheet_ORD Est City Office Hrs_24NOV2015
	Item 2 Attachment 1 PROPOSED_ORD_ Est City Hall Hrs_24NOV2015
	Item 3 Blue Sheet_Discuss Policies for Perm MJ Regs_24NOV2015
	Item 3 Attachment 1 Interim Zoning Map with 1000 foot buffers I_502_map_031015_18x24_aerial
	Item 3 Attachment 2 I-502_500ft_map_update
	Item 3 Attachment 3 Interim Regulations for Recreational Marijuana Ord. 06-14
	Item 4 Blue Sheet 11-24-15 Budget Deliberations 11-19-15
	Future Agenda Cover Sheet for Two Meetings
	12-08-2015 Special Study Session Agenda
	12-08-2015 Regular Meeting Agenda



